

# ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF TERRITORY

Queen's University is situated in the traditional Anishinaabe and Haudenosaunee Territory. To acknowledge this traditional territory is to recognize its longer history, one predating the establishment of the earliest European colonies. It is also to acknowledge this territory's significance for the Indigenous peoples who lived, and continue to live, upon it – people whose practices and spiritualities were tied to the land and continue to develop in relationship to the territory and its other inhabitants today. The Kingston Indigenous community continues to reflect the area's Anishinaabek and Haudenosaunee roots. There is also a significant Métis community and there are First Peoples from other Nations across Turtle Island present here today.

# **Table of Contents**

INTRODUCTION	4
ELIGIBILITY	4
TEAM COMPOSITION	4
THE COMPETITION STRUCTURE	5
PRELIMINARY ROUND RULES	6
GENERAL	
EXTERNAL AIDS	
DOCUMENT FORMATTING & SUBMISSION GUIDELINES	
SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS	8
BASIS FOR DETERMINING INVITATIONS TO FINAL WEEKEND	8
BASIS FOR DETERMINING DEBATE PARTICIPANTS	9
RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT	9
PRELIMINARY ROUND FEEDBACK	9
FINAL WEEKEND RULES	
GENERAL	10
PREPARATION (EXCEPT DEBATE)	10
PRESENTATION (EXCEPT DEBATE)	
DEBATE STREAM RULES	
FEEDBACK/JUDGES DEBRIEF	
PRESENTATION ROOM RULES	
RESULTS AND SCORING	17
RULE OF APPEAL, PENALTIES AND NON-COMPLIANCE	18
USE OF CONTENT FROM COMPETITION	18
APPENDIX	
SIMPLIFIED COMPETITOR ELIGIBILITY QUESTIONNAIRE	19
BEST PRACTICES FOR DEBATE	19

#### Introduction

This rules document contains the official rules for the Inter-Collegiate Business Competition (hereby referred to as I.C.B.C.). It is understood and expected that all participants (competitors, faculty advisors, observers, etc.) will familiarize themselves with and abide by the following rules and guidelines. Furthermore, I.C.B.C. refers the right to modify or update these rules prior to the competition. Please read each of the following rules carefully.

#### Eligibility

Note: A simplified eligibility questionnaire can be found within the Appendix at the end of the rules document.

- 1. The competition is open to all universities, colleges, or other institutions that offer an undergraduate business program (or equivalent as deemed by I.C.B.C.). The competitors must meet the following eligibility criteria:
- 1.1. Must be full-time undergraduate students as defined by the post-secondary institution that they are attending in the same term as the I.C.B.C. Preliminary Round;
- 1.1.1. I.C.B.C. holds the right to determine equivalency to a Canadian undergraduate degree, and reserves the right to consult, among others, international exchange offices and program directors, when determining the relative level of education equivalency;
- 1.2. Must be completing their first (1st) undergraduate degree in business, and have not started any Graduate, Masters, or higher-level program in any field;
- 1.3. Must not have previously qualified for I.C.B.C. Final Weekend in their respective competition stream; and
  - 1.4. May not compete in more than one (1) I.C.B.C. competition stream in a given year.
- 1.4.1. The sole exception to this rule is the Debate event. A Preliminary Round competitor who did not qualify for Final Weekend may still compete in the Debate event.
- 2. I.C.B.C. reserves the right to request proof of eligibility. All competitors are required to provide proof of enrolment (i.e. transcript, etc.) prior to the Preliminary Round submission deadline. I.C.B.C. will communicate details (i.e. date and method) pertaining to proof of enrolment submission.

#### **Team Composition**

- 3. Teams are to be comprised of, at maximum, two (2) students per team in the following events: Accounting & Finance, Debate, Ethics & Human Resources, Marketing, and Digital Strategy.
- 4. Teams are to be comprised of, at maximum, three (3) students per team in the Business Policy event.

- 5. Schools may modify their competing students up to the official start date of the Preliminary Round, at which point no alternative or substitute competitors are permitted, unless granted under extenuating circumstances.
- 5.1. I.C.B.C. reserves the right to request documentation to verify extenuating circumstances, and holds the right to accept or reject any substitute requests.

# The Competition Structure

- 6. I.C.B.C. consists of two (2) competition rounds: Preliminary Round and Final Weekend.
- 7. The Preliminary Round includes the following seven (7) events: Accounting, Finance, Business Policy, Ethics, Human Resources, Marketing, and Digital Strategy.
  - 7.1. Debate is not included in the Preliminary Round.
- 8. Invitations to Final Weekend will be extended to the Top Six (6) teams all streams, except Business Policy, where the Top Six (6) teams will advance as they will be joined by two (2) teams competing via the International Invitational.
- 8.1. The International Invitational guarantees entry to Final Weekend for Two (2) teams from Two (2) international schools in the Business Policy stream.
  - 8.1.1. "International" is hereby defined as outside of Canada.
- 8.1.2. I.C.B.C. reserves the right to choose and consult external parties when determining the schools receiving the International Invitational.
- 8.1.3. In the event that an International Invitational team has unforeseen and extenuating circumstances rendering them unable to compete, invitations will be extended to the seventh (7th), eighth (8th), and ninth (9th) place teams respectively in the Business Policy Preliminary Round (after which no new invitations will be sent).
- 8.2. In the event a team or school faces extenuating circumstances and is unable to attend Final Weekend, an invitation will be extended to the 7th and 8th team in the respective Preliminary Round stream. After the 8th place team has been invited, no new invitations will be sent.
- 9. I.C.B.C. Final Weekend is to be held annually at the Smith School of Business at Queen's University. Exact dates are to be provided by I.C.B.C.

#### **Preliminary Round Rules**

#### General

- 10. The Preliminary Round consists of a video-recorded response of a slide presentation, which is to be electronically submitted to the digital platform specified by I.C.B.C.
- 11. The Preliminary Round will run according to the dates and times specified by I.C.B.C. No modifications or requests for accommodation to this timeline will be permitted.
- 12. No person shall be permitted to view or commence Preliminary Round cases prior to the official start date and time, even if cases arrive prior to the official start date.
- 13. Prior to viewing their case, competitors must read, abide by, and sign the "Pre-Case Ethical Standards and Guidelines" form. Failure to do so will result in immediate disqualification from the competition.
- 14. No person other than the competing team is permitted to read the case, any intermediate analysis, or the submission until the Preliminary Round Submission deadline has passed.
- 15. As per copyright guidelines, cases are to be used solely for I.C.B.C. purposes, unless otherwise indicated. To purchase access to a case, please contact I.C.B.C.

## External Aids

- 16. Each competing team is on its own, and is not to request or receive advice, from any other person or entity on how to proceed with the report. For example, a faculty advisor is NOT permitted to aid their team in any manner.
- 17. The Preliminary Round case carries an open-style format. Competitors are permitted to use any outside resources that the reasonable and typical undergraduate student would be able to access (i.e. password protected databases are not permitted).
- 17.1. I.C.B.C. reserves the right to interpret and define reasonable access, along with question outside reference sourcing. Should one be unsure of the eligibility of their source, please contact I.C.B.C.
  - 17.2. Please note that citations of the I.C.B.C. case are not necessary.
- 17.3. As I.C.B.C. is case driven, and most (if not all) information used in Preliminary Round submission should be from the case itself. External sources should only be used to supplement material from the case.
- 18.Competitors and their submissions are to be in accordance with the academic integrity guidelines of their school, as well as the host school, Smith School of Business (https://smith.queensu.ca/about/academic integrity/).

### Presentation Formatting & Submission Guidelines

- 19. The Preliminary Round submission shall contain the following components:
  - 19.1. A video-recorded case presentation, where all competitors are present on screen in a video conference format (ie. Zoom, Google Meet etc.) at all times with the following guidelines:
    - 19.1.1. be no more than ten (10) minutes in length,
    - 19.1.2. have all team members present; and
    - 19.1.3. include one clear-cut video.
    - 19.1.4. no editing software is permitted.
    - 19.1.5. competitors must be wearing business formal attire.
  - 19.2. A PDF document of the slide presentation with the following guidelines:
    - 19.2.1. I.C.B.C. Cover Slide Max. One (1) Slide

19.2.1.1. The I.C.B.C. Cover Slide is provided by I.C.B.C. It is to be included at the front of the slide and include the following: school name, competitor names, and the respective competition stream. **Competitors may not present this slide. Those who do will face disqualification or a point deduction.** 

19.2.2. Title Page - Max. One (1) Slide

19.2.2.1. The title page should concisely state the issue of the report and specify any individual or group to whom the report is addressed.

- 19.2.3. Table of Contents Max. One (1) Slide
- 19.2.4. Executive Summary Max One (1) Slide
- 19.2.5. Body Slides Max. Seven (7) Slides

19.2.5.1. It is recommended to include an Introduction, Problem Analysis, Alternatives, Recommendation & Implementation, Risk and Mitigation, and Conclusion)

- 19.2.6. Include no slide transition effects,
- 19.2.7. have page numbers in the top right corner of the slides,
- 19.2.8. be typed in Times New Roman or Raleway font, and
- 19.2.9. be in minimum font size of ten (10) points.
- 19.3. Exhibits (Mandatory for all streams except Debate) Max. Five (5) Pages
- 19.3.1. Note: Exhibits are submitted as a separate PDF document. If endnotes are required, they should be included at the end of the submission in MLA, APA, Chicago, and other standards formats (so long as the usage of a common style is consistent); Please note that the sole exception to these guidelines is any Exhibits which have their own formatting guidelines below in section 22.

20. The slides presented in the video recording must match the slides submitted as a separate file, with exception of the cover slide. No edits should be made between filming and submission.

- 21. Any information that may identify competitors or their competing schools (i.e. school name, surname, city/country name) shall ONLY appear on the I.C.B.C. Cover Sheet. However, first names are permitted throughout the slide presentation itself.
- 22. All included exhibits must abide by the following guidelines:
- 22.1. Typed in Times New Roman font with a minimum size of at least twelve (12) point font.
  - 22.1.1. This includes any images pasted into the submission, tables, graphs, etc.;
- 22.1.2. Please be aware of unintentional font conversions, which will revert the font to Microsoft Word's default font. I.C.B.C. bears no responsibility for these font changes.
- 22.2. Any text must be in bullet form, with no more than fifty (50) words per bullet or four (4) lines at a time, whichever is smaller (includes within tables, graphs, etc.).
- 22.3. Landscape exhibits are permitted; however, they must be included in the submitted exhibit report.
- 23. In the case of failure to abide by Formatting and Submission Guidelines, I.C.B.C. reserves the right to:
  - 23.1. penalize submissions;
- 23.1.1. I.C.B.C. reserves the right to deduct points, implement a drop in rank, or disqualification depending on the frequency and severity of infractions committed.
- 23.2. modify existing submissions to ensure that they meet Formatting and Submission Guidelines.

## <u>Submission Instructions:</u>

- 24. Case Submissions (Video, Slides, Exhibits) are to be submitted electronically in a method provided by I.C.B.C.
- 25. Submissions must be received before the Preliminary Round Submission Deadline. No exceptions will be made, and I.C.B.C. bears no responsibility for technological difficulties or errors.
- 26. Submissions must be submitted in BOTH PowerPoint (ppt.) and PDF format.
- 27. All documents must be named abiding by the following format: "School Name \_Competition Stream".

#### Basis for Determining Invitations to Final Weekend

- 28. I.C.B.C. Preliminary Round Judges (including, but not limited to, Queen's Undergraduate and Post-Graduate Professors and Industry Professionals) will review submissions in each of their respective streams;
  - 28.1. I.C.B.C. Judge identities will be kept anonymous prior to grading and deliberation.

- 29. Preliminary Round Judges will assign a mark out of one hundred (100) possible points to each submission and then rank each submission relative to the others submitted in the same competition stream;
- 29.1. Marks will be allocated and deducted at the discretion of the Judges, dependent on the major issues of the case and the analysis required.

## Basis for Determining Debate Participants

- 30. Each team will be given points based on their ranking in each event in the Preliminary Round. The point allocation is as such:
  - 30.1. 1st Place Finish in a Preliminary Round Stream Seven (7) Points
  - 30.2. 2nd Place Finish in a Preliminary Round Stream Six (6) Points
  - 30.3. 3rd Place Finish in a Preliminary Round Stream Five (5) Points
  - 30.4. 4th Place Finish in a Preliminary Round Stream Four (4) Points
  - 30.5. 5th Place Finish in a Preliminary Round Stream Three (3) Points
  - 30.6. 6th Place Finish in a Preliminary Round Stream Two (2) Points
  - 30.7. Additional Participation in a Preliminary Round Stream (i.e. did not place) One (1)

    Point
- 31. The Top Six (6) teams in aggregate points will be invited to bring a debating team to the Final Round.

#### Results Announcement

- 32. Results of the Preliminary Round will be announced on a date and time set by I.C.B.C.
- 33. Results will be announced digitally on the I.C.B.C. website. Results may also be released on I.C.B.C. official social media accounts, subject to the discretion of I.C.B.C.
- 34. Results will be announced in a random order, and the order in which schools are announced bears no reference to their Preliminary Round ranking (other than their placement in the Top Five (5) or Six (6)).

#### Preliminary Round Feedback

- 35. Feedback comments from Judges will be emailed out on a rolling basis following the results announcement.
- 36. Comments made by Preliminary Round Judges will not display school rank, and I.C.B.C. reserves the right to deny requests for rank information in order to maintain equal standing going into Final Weekend.

#### **Final Weekend Rules**

#### General

- 37. Competitors must have competed in and have met the eligibility criteria for the Preliminary Round of the competition.
  - 37.1. However, International Invitational and Debate competitors will not compete in the Preliminary Round but must meet eligibility criteria for the Preliminary Round; and
  - 37.2. I.C.B.C. reserves the right to grant exceptions to this rule in extenuating circumstances (i.e. severe illness or death of a competitor prior to the competition).
- 38. formal business attire is required for all presentations and debates.
- 39. Presentations and debates are to be held in Goodes Hall classrooms, other buildings on Queen's campus or in local Kingston venues (subject to availability), with the exact presentation room information communicated to schools a minimum of 24 hours prior to the Opening Banquet by I.C.B.C.
- 40. Competitors are absolutely NOT permitted to mention their full name (first name is permitted), school name or make any reference to their school in presentations AND any presentation materials (i.e. PowerPoint Presentation slides).
  - 40.1. Before commencing their presentation or debate, competitors will be introduced by their team number to the Judges. Nametags are to be removed prior to entering the presentation or debate room;
  - 40.2. In presentations, competitors may ONLY introduce themselves and their partner(s) by first name(s); and
  - 40.3. Failure to abide by this rule seriously breaches competition rules. It will result in a 10-point deduction and an additional 30-point deduction upon the second infraction to their Final Round presentation. Presentations will be marked out of a total of 100 points

#### Preparation (Except Debate)

For Debate Rules, please see the "Debate Rules" section below.

- 41. Competitors will be assigned a preparation room on the Queen's University campus, with exact preparation rooms available at registration.
- 42. Competitors may bring personal laptops, physical textbooks, paper notes, and non-programmable calculators to their preparation room for their case analysis.
  - 42.1. Electronic files (i.e. pre-made PowerPoint templates, etc.) or non-I.C.B.C. USB drives (regardless of whether files are present or not) are not permitted; and
  - 42.2. there will be no exceptions to these rules.

- 43. Once the case has been received, and until they have exited the presentation room following the case presentation, competitors:
  - 43.1. shall not speak with any Faculty Advisors or other teams regarding the case; and
- 43.2. may use chalkboards, whiteboards, projectors, or TVs within presentation rooms. In the event that none are present, I.C.B.C. will provide blank, white paper.
- 44. For all streams other than Debate, competitors will have 5.5 hours to prepare for all Final Weekend events.
- 45. Competitors are only allowed access to publicly-available information. They are prohibited from using:
  - 45.1. Password-protected databases; and
  - 45.2. Resources and online databases that have been provided by their school.
- 46. Presentation materials must be submitted to the digital submission platform specified by I.C.B.C. at least 0.5 hours (30 minutes) prior to the end of the preparation period. The digital submission platform will reflect this time requirement.
- 46.1. All materials wishing to be presented on Presentation Room screens (i.e. PowerPoint presentations) must be submitted to the digital submission platform in BOTH .ppt (PowerPoint) and .pdf (PDF) formats.
- 46.1.1. As per Rule 40, these materials must NOT feature competitor last names, school, and/or any other prohibited references to competitors (however, first name(s) and/or fictional consulting company are permitted);
- 46.1.1.1. Failure to abide by this rule will result in the ban of said presentation materials from the presentation room.
- 46.1.2. It is the responsibility of competitors to ensure that the correct files are uploaded to the digital submission platform. I.C.B.C. bears no responsibility for incorrect file upload or corrupt files.
- 47. Competitors must arrive at their designated presentation room 10 minutes prior to their scheduled presentation time. I.C.B.C. Executive Members or Volunteers have the right to direct competitors from their preparation rooms to their designated presentation room at this time.
- 48. In any Microsoft PowerPoint Presentations, competitors:
  - 48.1. May have as many slides as desired;
- 48.2. may use any fonts they choose, and may make cosmetic changes to their text (i.e. font size, colour, bold, underline, etc.);

- 48.3. may not use animations. Please note that it is the competitor's responsibility to understand that slides will be uploaded as both PowerPoint and PDF files. The PDF will be used during the presentation, and Powerpoint files will only be used as a backup in the case that the PDF file does not work;
  - 48.4. may insert data from Microsoft Excel;
- 48.5. may insert pictures, clipart and/or other media that is accessible and standard on Microsoft applications; and
  - 48.6. are permitted to use the Drawing toolbar and Smart Art (i.e. circles, lines, etc.)
- 49. All cases may not be copied, distributed, sold, modified, reproduced, or used without the express permission of the copyright holders. Requests regarding any of the aforementioned are to be directed to I.C.B.C., and any unauthorized distribution of cases will be subject to penalty.

## Presentation (Except Debate)

For Debate Rules, please see the "Debate Rules" section below.

- 50. Presenter full name and school identifiers must NOT be disclosed to Judges or sponsors until deliberation has concluded for the particular stream.
- 50.1. Judges or sponsors may see the schedule for the day of presentations, granted that there are no identifiers shown.
- 51. All presentations for all streams will be fifteen (15) minutes in length, followed by a five (5) minute question period during which the Judges may ask the competitors questions pertaining to the case and their presentation.
- 51.1. Competitors will be provided time warnings by an I.C.B.C. Room Host at ten (10) minutes, five (5) minutes, two (2) minutes, one (1) minute, thirty (30) seconds, and ten (10) seconds.
- 52. Immediately following the presentation period, the five (5) minute question period will commence. The structure of this period is up to Judges' discretion, however must remain relevant to the case and presentation.
- 53. Upon completion of the question and answer period, the competing team and all observers will be directed outside the presentation room for Judges' deliberation. Judges will have eight (8) minutes to deliberate and four (4) minutes to provide feedback to competitors.

#### **Debate Stream Rules**

For other streams, please see the "Preparation" and "Presentation" sections above. For some Debate Best Practices to remember, please see the Appendix.

- 54. Debate shall consist of six (6) teams with two (2) competitors each, along with three (3) qualifying rounds, and one (1) Final Debate.
- 55. The resolutions will be announced thirty (30) minutes before each round of debates. Preparation rooms will be provided to competing teams.
- 56. Debaters are permitted to use their own writing utensils during the preparation time, although pens and paper will be provided.
- 57. Debaters are not permitted to consult any external materials (including, but not limited to, faculty advisors, external notes, textbooks, etc.) during their thirty (30)-minute preparation time.
- 58. The government team shall sit on the right-hand side of the Speaker (Speaker's right); the opposition on the left.
- 58.1. Government and Opposition assignments will be decided at random for each debate.
- 59. The timing and order of speakers shall be as follows:
  - 59.1. Prime Minister Five (5) minutes
  - 59.2. Minister of the Opposition Five (5) minutes
  - 59.3. Minister of the Crown (Government) Five (5) minutes
  - 59.4. Leader of the Opposition Eight (8) minutes
  - 59.5. Prime Minister Three (3) minutes
- 59.6. Note: The last three (3) minutes of the Leader of the Opposition's speech and the second speech of the Prime Minister are reserved for rebuttal.
- 59.7. Note: The first (1st) and last minute of any speech is a period of "protected time", where no points of information or heckling may occur. Furthermore, the entire last speech by the Prime Minister is to constitute protected time.
- 60. All competitors must stand when speaking; only one member may be standing at one time. No member may commence their remarks without being recognized by the Speaker, heckles excluded.

- 61. During rebuttal, all members must deal exclusively with arguments that have been raised previously. New evidence may be used, but no new arguments will be considered by the Judges.
- 62. Time signals will be given with two (2) minutes, one (1) minute and ten (10) seconds left. At the expiration of time, the debater shall conclude in one sentence (a grace period of fifteen (15) seconds will be given to do so). Any points made after will not be considered by the Judges.
- 62.1. Competitors will also be informed of the removal of protected time by the moderator hitting the table exactly one minute after the competitor starts speaking and with one (1) minute left in the presentation.
- 63. All remarks shall be directed to the Speaker of the House (for example, simply begin with "Madam Speaker", etc., NOT "distinguished Judges", etc.).
- 63.1. Before each debate, the Speaker of the House will be introduced and if they choose, will share their preferred gender pronoun. The Speaker is not required to express a preference for gender pronoun, however if given, all competitors should take note of the preferred pronoun of the speaker and use that pronoun to refer to them.
- 63.2. The Speaker of the House shall, at all times unless provided another gender pronoun, be referred to as "Mr. Speaker", "Madam Speaker", or "Honourable Speaker", never in any other terms such as "Ms. Speaker", "Mr. Chairman" etc.
- 64. The government, in proposing the resolution, bears the burden of proof and is required to prove it to be true on a "balance of probabilities". It also has the responsibility listed below to set the scope and the setting for the debate, and must use discretion in applying these two advantages (an unmanageable setting or definition will not allow the opposition to participate in the debate):
- 64.1. The Right of Definition: At the start of the Prime Minister's speech, all essential terms in the resolution must be defined. Failure to do so allows the opposition to define terms in their first (1st) speech. There are three limitations to the right of definition:
- 64.1.1. The definition must be, in some way, shape, or form, derived from the words of the resolution;
  - 64.1.2. The definition must not produce a tautology (true by definition); and
  - 64.1.3. The definition must not produce a truism (trivial or obviously true).
- 64.2. The Right of Setting: the government, at the beginning of the Prime Minister's speech, may impose a setting upon the House. The setting may be in the past, present, future, or in literature. It must be a generally known setting (please bear in mind that I.C.B.C. is an international competition). If no setting is placed before the House, the House is assumed to be nowhere in particular at the present time.
- 65. The Member of the Opposition has the prerogative to introduce a counter-plan during their speech. Counter-plans that are co-optive (accept virtually all of the government contentions) or not reasonably mutually exclusive are strongly discouraged.

- 66. Squirrelling is strictly prohibited in all I.C.B.C. debates (both the Preliminary Round and the Final Round). Any squirrelling will result in disqualification from the Debating event.
- 66.1. "Squirrelling" refers to when a debater defines the terms of the resolution in a manner that is not consistent with general understanding.
- 67. There are two points with which a debater may interrupt a debate: a Point of Information or Point of Privilege.
- 67.1. Point of Information (POI): A POI is a question or point posed to the speaking member by an opposing member during debate. A POI may only be asked when the opposing member stands and is acknowledged by the speaking debater. Additionally, a POI may not be presented during protected time;
- 67.2. Point of Privilege (POP): The following constitutes a POP, and no member may raise a POP on behalf of another:
- 67.2.1. Explicit misquotation or gross material misrepresentation (not misinterpretation);
  - 67.2.2. Being referred to by an incorrect title/name;
  - 67.2.3. Introducing a new argument in rebuttal;
  - 67.2.4. Severe personal and constituent slander; and
- 67.2.5. Introduction of counter-plan by Leader of the Opposition (not previously mentioned by Minister of the Opposition).
- 67.3. When wishing to raise a point of privilege, a debater should rise, addressing the Speaker and then state, "I rise on a point of privilege". When the Speaker says, "State your point", the debater against whom the point is being made must sit down. The debater raising the point must again address the Speaker, briefly state the point and then sit down. The Speaker will then rule on the point, declaring it to be "well taken" or "not well taken";
- 67.4. Points that are well taken shall be included in the speaking time of the offending member. Points that are not well taken shall not be included; and
- 67.5. There may only be one point on the floor at any one time. Points are not to be debated; the Speaker will rule independently.
- 68. Breaches of Order: The list below constitutes breaches of the rules of the House, which cause disturbance to the debate and thus are liable to be Breaches of Order. Both the Judges and Speaker will make note of Breaches of Order, and in the event a breach occurs and unlike other breaches of the rules (which simply damage a team's chance of attaining a good result in the debate), the Speaker of the House must act to enforce the rules, calling for "order". In such an unlikely case, debaters must immediately cease any of the breaches below. The Speaker should never call order for a breach of the rules that is not listed below as a breach order.
  - 68.1. Unparliamentary language;
  - 68.2. Disrespectful or discriminatory points;
  - 68.3. Gross or persistent breaches of the rules of the House;

- 68.4. Direct reference to a prop (diagram, sign, any physical object, etc.) or prompt;
- 68.5. Insulting, defaming, or misquoting or generally abusing the Speaker;
- 68.6. Interruption of another debater outside of Points of Information and Points of Privilege; and
  - 68.7. Barracking or Badgering.
- 69. Heckling is not acceptable during the Preliminary Rounds of Debate. Doing so will result in penalties against the team (i.e. deduction of points, etc.). Heckles are only permitted for the Final Debate, where they are only permitted from the audience (not debaters).
- 69.1. All heckles should be respectful, clearly audible, short, incisive, witty, and somewhat relevant. A constant flow of dull remarks should be avoided at all costs. If excess heckling becomes disturbing, the Speaker of the House will intervene. Unprofessional, disrespectful, and/or disruptive heckling will not be tolerated. I.C.B.C. reserves the right to escort any audience members outside the Debate Hall should they persistently fail to co-operate with the Speaker of the House.
- 70. A ruling by the Speaker may not be appealed.
- 71. The two (2) teams with the highest cumulative scores from the three (3) rounds will proceed to the Final Round.

#### Feedback/Judges Debrief

- 72. Feedback and a Judges debrief will be provided upon completion of all presentations in a given and after Judge deliberations. Judges will be asked to provide general and individual feedback; however, session format (i.e. the inclusion questions from competitors and faculty advisors) is up to their discretion.
- 72.1. At this point, competitors and faculty advisors may provide their full name and school, network with Judges, etc.;
- 72.2. That being said, all attendees shall not ask Judges for results, and Judges are instructed not to provide them;
- 72.3. This is the only opportunity to ask for feedback. In order to maintain a positive I.C.B.C. experience for all, competitors and Judges are not permitted to discuss the presentations and any feedback at other I.C.B.C. events; and
- 72.4. The duration of feedback sessions will be made clear by I.C.B.C. prior to their commencement.

#### Presentation Room Rules

- 73. All presentation attendees must abide by the following presentation room rules for all six (6) streams at Final Weekend:
- 73.1. All attendees are expected to follow the directions of the I.C.B.C. Room Host within the presentation rooms;
- 73.2. The I.C.B.C. Room Host will direct guests when it is appropriate to enter and exit a room. There shall be no entry and/or exit of presentation rooms during a presentation or question and answer period, unless in the event of an emergency;
- 73.3. Presentation rooms are to be technology-free zones during case presentations and the question period. Phones, laptops, and tablets must be turned off and left at the front of the room.
- 73.4. All identification must be removed prior to entering the presentation rooms. Attendees must have nothing, and say nothing, to draw reference to a competing school or their identity;
- 73.5. Attendees must not communicate with the Judges until completion of the feedback session, nor make any comments or references that may influence the Judges;
- 73.6. It is strictly forbidden for an attendee to record, photograph, or film any I.C.B.C. presentation or debate, unless given permission by I.C.B.C.;
- 73.7. Competitors are only permitted to view presentations of others in the streams in which they did NOT participate (i.e. Finance Team #1 is not permitted to view the presentation of Finance Team #2 but may watch Marketing Team #2); and
- 73.8. I.C.B.C. reserves the ability to restrict an individual's right to view presentations in the case of failure to abide by these rules, along with penalizing their school's teams in the event of persistent presentation room rule infractions.

#### Results and Scoring

- 74. Final Weekend results in the form of the Top Three (3) teams in each stream will be announced at Final Banquet at the conclusion of I.C.B.C.
- 75. Final Banquet shall also include the announcement of the Co-Chairpersons Award, given to the school that demonstrates the most spirit and sportsmanship throughout the competition. The award is decided on by the I.C.B.C. Co-Chairpersons, and is presented to an entire school's delegation.
- 76. Judges will have complete discretion on their preferred method to judge presentations and debate, along with weightings associated to their criteria. Given that each case is unique in nature, I.C.B.C. does not mandate a standardized rubric. However, a sample guide rubric will be provided.

## Rule of Appeal, Penalties and Non-Compliance

77. If at any point an attendee (competitor, faculty advisor, observer, etc.) believes that an infraction has been committed during the course of a Final Weekend presentation, they should report the infraction to the I.C.B.C. Info Desk within thirty (30) minutes of the presentation's completion. In the event that the infraction occurred during the Debate event, it must be presented within thirty (30) minutes after the last debate prior to Final Debate.

78. Should a rule infraction occur, I.C.B.C. reserves the right to disqualify, enforce a drop-in rank (i.e. from Third Place (3rd) to Fourth Place (4th)), and/or penalize in another way that I.C.B.C. deems appropriate for the infraction, for any team in the competition.

79. I.C.B.C. also reserves the right to apply penalties to a team and/or school that does not maintain a reasonable standard of conduct (both professionally and in the spirit of the competition) at all competition venues and throughout all the events (this includes, but is not limited to, following competitor hotel policies and with respect to other attendees).

80. I.C.B.C. reserves the right to consult with external parties with regards to rules violations and penalties, including (but not limited to), Judges, faculty advisors, the I.C.B.C. Executive Team and Volunteers, and the Executive Director of the Commerce Program.

#### **Use of Content from Competition**

81. I.C.B.C. may use any Preliminary Round case submission as it sees fit upon conclusion of the Preliminary Round. Uses may or may not involve anonymity (i.e. case submissions sent to sponsors may keep competitor names, while example submissions posted online may be kept anonymous).

82.I.C.B.C. reserves the right to record all presentations and take pictures during preparation time, presentations and throughout all activities during Final Weekend. I.C.B.C. can allow for designated photographers to be in presentation rooms to take photographs of the competition. I.C.B.C. also reserves the right to use presentation slides as it sees fit after the competition, including but not limited to, providing them to corporate sponsors and using them as example presentations.

#### **Appendix**

<u>Simplified Competitor Eligibility Questionnaire</u>

- Is the competitor an undergraduate student working towards an undergraduate degree (or equivalent) at your school? **Yes/No**
- Will the competitor be full-time student in the same semester as the Preliminary Round?
   Yes/No
- Is the competitor in their first (1st) year of an undergraduate degree? Yes/No
- Do you agree with the statement: the competitor has not started or completed a Graduate, Masters, or Higher program? **Yes/No**
- Do you agree with the statement: the competitor has not qualified for Final Weekend in the past for the stream in which they are competing? **Yes/No**
- Do you agree with the statement: the competitor is not competing in another competition stream? **Yes/No**

RESULTS: If the answer was yes to ALL the previous 6 questions, the competitor is eligible. If any of the answers to the questions above was no, then the competitor is not eligible for competition.

#### Best Practices for Debate

- Remember to address the Speaker at the start of every speech.
- Refer to members of the House only by their official names.
- It is advised to avoid the following, which will be noted by the Judges:
  - Presentation of tautological definitions
  - Presentation of truisms

Acceptance of Rules				
We,	Competitor (First and Last Name)	Competitor (First and Last Name)		
Сотр	petitor (First and Last Name)	_ hereby accept the I.C.B.C. competitor rules of	the Preliminary Rounds	
of 2023.				
Signatures	:	Date:		
		-		
		_		